
 

 

Tender Reference Number: IND/INV/20-21/NSWS-1001 

 

Response to pre-bid queries related to RFP for Selection of Agency for Helpdesk Centre for 
National Single Window System 
 

# Statement as per RFP 
document 

Query by bidder Response 

1 Defining various procedures 
related to call handling, call 
routing, email/ query form and 
chat handling, and interface 
between NSWS and Helpdesk 
Center systems 

Does it include Chat Bot? The RFP does not include Chatbot 
however live chat support will be in the 
scope of work of the selected agency. 

2 Total Operational Hours: 6 days a 
week (9am to 6pm tentative). It 
can be extended in case of any 
marketing event by Invest India. 
Such information shall be given to 
the Vendor through email at least 
2 days in advance. 

What are the extended 
hours? 

There may be a requirement from time 
to time to work extended hours on 
mutual agreement basis. 

3 Languages Supported: The team 
should be able to handle queries 
in, Hindi, Kannada, Telugu, and 
Tamil in the beginning (Going 
forward more regional languages 
will be added subsequently 
during contract). 

What are the forthcoming 
languages? How many 
agents are required in each 
language?  

Please refer the list of scheduled 22 
languages in constitution. 

4 CTI Server, CTI Solution 
including Automated Call 
Distributor, Queuing, Call 
Recording and Monitoring, 
Reporting and other 
functionalities as included in 
industry standard Call Center 
Solutions. CTI Should be able to 
integrate with call center solution. 
It may be interfaced with the Core 
system of NSWS so send/receive 
data which needs to be populated 
(as in when developed). Invest 
India will give read access rights 
to bidders for its system. 
Helpdesk Center must be Able to 
generate service requests and 
register grievances. 

Can helpdesk agents be able 
to update NSWS data when 
CTI is integrated. 

We are building MS Dynamics 365 CRM 
and QMS system. Appropriate APIs will 
be provided by Invest India. 

5 The operational data such as 
Call, Chat, emails etc. being 
generated during the operational 
period will be properly stored and 
archived for at least 180 days as 
per the industry standard 
practices to be used for as per 
the requirement.  

Can it be deleted after 180 
days 

The information cannot be deleted. The 
information must be safely achieved 
post 180 days which can be easily 
accessed whenever required by Invest 
India team. Government of India 
guidelines shall be followed for Data 
Retention/Archiving. 

6 Ensuring quick and effective 
resolution of all information 
related queries in a time effective 
manner  

Is there a time bound way to 
measure the response? 

Please refer Service Level Agreement in 
Section 5.2.4 of the RFP. 
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7 In addition to the above, the team 
is expected to deliver ad-
hoc/bespoke requests shared by 
Invest India from time-to-time. 

What are the bespoke 
requests? 

Ad hoc/Bespoke requests could be 
Outbound calls or emails required at the 
time of any marketing event or high-
level meeting. A prior notice will be 
given to selected agency in case of 
such requirements. 

8 In the initial week post contract 
finalization, the Helpdesk Center 
vendor would be expected to 
share the format/template, the 
number of reports and the 
frequency of reports that would 
be shared with Invest India. The 
vendor would be expected to 
make any relevant changes that 
Invest India might consider 
necessary to these formats. 

Need details of the report 
requirements along with the 
dashboard. 

Standard reports with Call Details would 
be required. Customized Data report 
format will be finalized mutually between 
Invest India and Service Provider. 

9 The reports would be expected to 
detail out the trending of the KPIs 
identified and their performance 
against set SLAs. In addition, the 
Helpdesk Center vendor would be 
expected to provide any 
additional reporting information 
requested by Invest India at no 
additional cost. 

Need the details of the reports 
that might be requested by 
Invest India 

Standard reports with Call Details would 
be required. Customized Data report 
format will be finalized mutually between 
Invest India and Service Provider. 

10  All the reports should be offered 
on a real time basis through 
Helpdesk Center vendor CRM. 

Customized reports required 
at some duration would be 
created. 

Reports should be offered on a real time 
basis. 

11 Ramp Up: The selected vendor 
should be able to immediately 
ramp up the number of seats, at 
the pre agreed rate per seat as 
per the financial bid, if 
requirement comes from NSWS 
team of Invest India 

How soon or frequent should 
ramp up happen? How many 
resources in multiples and 
what category? 

Prior notice with adequate time will be 
provided to the selected agency. 

12 The team must provide business 
intelligence tools (BI) and 
Analytical Tools for all reports.  

Which BI and Analytical tool is 
used? Which one is 
recommended? 

Power BI is the preferred tool, license 
will be provided by Invest India, in case 
required. 

13 (g) The Bidder should have the 
following valid PCI_DSS 
Certification as on date of 
submission of the proposal. 
(Copy of Certificate 

If the bidder is not having 
requisite certification, please 
allow the bidder to participate 
in the bidding process and 
submit certification before the 
award of contract. 

Bidder should have a valid certification 
on the date of bid submission. 

14 (j) The bidder should have a 
minimum turnover of Rs.50 crores 
per annum in two of last three 
financial years (CA Audited 
certificate and income tax returns 
for last 3 financial years) 

The turnover stipulation is too 
harsh. Please re-consider and 
allow   the minimum turnover 
of Rs.40 crores per annum in 
two of last three financial 
years 

Please refer to the corrigendum on 
www.investindia.gov.in  

15 (n) The bidder must have 
successfully completed at least 2 
projects of similar nature** in last 
3 years with at least 1 project 
having a minimum order value of 
INR 50 lakh each. (Copy of work 
order, Contract for each of the 
mentioned assignments required) 

Please also allow the 
experience of telecom, Govt. 
help lines and service utility 
work, etc also. Please clarify 
Single Window System. We 
hope and trust that customer 
facilitation can be reckoned 
as Single Window System. 

We will be accepting telecom, Govt. 
help lines and service utility work, etc. 
as experience under this project. For 
clarity on Single window system kindly 
refer to page no. 61 

http://www.investindia.gov.in/
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** State/Central Single Window 
systems, Tax helplines, BFSI, 
Techno-Regulatory, Application 
Processing etc. 

16 Training: The Helpdesk Center 
agency would be responsible for 
the recruitment and training of all 
customer call associates and 
timely refresher training of 
resources as well. 

Who will conduct the TTT & 
Pilot batch training! 

Invest India will conduct the initial 
training for the trainer. 

17 (each resource should be able to 
answer query in at least 1 
regional language) 

Any regional language can be 
considered like Punjabi etc. 

The team should be able to handle 
queries in, Hindi, Kannada, Telugu, and 
Tamil in the beginning (Going forward 
more regional languages will be added 
subsequently during contract). Please 
refer page no 64 of RFP. 

18 Penalty: 2% of Quarterly payment 
for not meeting the operational 
SLA 

First 6 months should be 
considered as no penalty 
period as it is not possible to 
achieve all SLA parameters 
from day one. 

No change to this clause.  

19 Contract which shall not be later 
than 30 (thirty) days of the issue 
of the Letter of Award, furnish to 
Invest India a performance 
security in the form of an 
irrevocable and unconditional 
Bank Guarantee for an amount 
equal to 10% (Ten Percent) of 
cost for application design, 
development, and implementation 
of the project which (Part A of the 
financial bid). This performance 
guarantee will be released upon 
fulfilment of all responsibilities for 
completion of application design, 
development, and implementation 
and on submission of a fresh 
bank guarantee for an amount 
equal to 10% (Ten Percent) of the 
cost of Maintenance of the 
system (Part B of the financial 
bid). This fresh bank guarantee 
may be discharged after 
successful completion of the 
whole Project 

PBG 10% of total amount is 
very high comparing to the 
volume of business. Can it be 
reduced or latest guideline of 
maximum of 3% of Govt. of 
India will be applicable 

Please refer to the corrigendum on 
www.investindia.gov.in  

20 1. Dedicated size of 1000 
employees on payroll 
2. 2 Projects in last three years 
with value of 50 Lakh each- 
3. Minimum Turnover of 50 
Crores in 2 of 3 financial years- 

The above pre-qualification 
requirements are not 
proportionate to each other 
and to the current scope of 
work, because 
 
a. Any company with 1000 
employee base would have 
far greater turnover than 50 
crores in any of the financial 
years.   
b. Any company with over 50 

Please refer to the corrigendum on 
www.investindia.gov.in   

http://www.investindia.gov.in/
http://www.investindia.gov.in/
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Crores of turnover would 
certainly have larger value 
orders than 50 lacs 
c. Where the proposed Team 
strength is 10+4 in scope of 
work. 

21 Data Sheet, point 3 Pre-
Qualification Criteria, Sub Point 
(c) The Bidder/Group Company/ 
Subsidiary/ Parental Company 
should be profitable in two out of 
last three financial years (2019-
20, 2018-19 and 2017-18). 

We (iSON) are registered in 
India as 100% subsidiary of 
our main holding (parental) 
Company ISON Xperiences, 
Mauritius. Can we Bid from 
India entity and show the 
Financial 
Statements/strengths of our 
parental company?  

Not Acceptable. 

22 Data Sheet point 3 Pre-
Qualification Criteria, Sub Point 
(g) The Bidder should have valid 
PCI_DSS Certification as on date 
of submission of the proposal.  

Our BFSI processes are PCI 
DSS compliant. We do not 
have the certification though. 
Is it a mandate to have the 
PCI DSS Certification to apply 
for the Bid? 

 PCI_DSS Certification is mandatory as 
on date of submission of the proposal.  

23 Data Sheet point 3 Pre-
Qualification Criteria, Sub Point 
(n) The bidder must have 
successfully completed at least 2 
projects of similar nature** in last 
3 years. (** State/Central Single 
Window systems, Tax helplines, 
BFSI, Techno-Regulatory, 
Application Processing) 

We have 1(one) BFSI client 
SBI Card active sine over last 
3 years. And 2 (two) 
additional BFSI clients (Bajaj 
Finserv and Bajaj Allianz) 
active since last 12 months or 
so. Will we pass this particular 
eligibility criteria? 

Please refer to the prequalification 
criteria of the RFP. 

24 5.2 Scope of Work and 
Deliverables, Languages 
Supported: The team should be 
able to handle queries in Hindi, 
Kannada, Telugu, and Tamil in 
the beginning. 

For 10 agents’ requirements 
only, what will be the break of 
Hindi, Kannada, Telugu, and 
Tamil speaking agents? 
Please share. 

We expect bidder to have capability to 
provide support for regional languages. 
The exact number shall be decided on 
actual calls. 

25 "Operational" clause points vi. 
Average Handle time (AHT) < 
240 seconds 

Does the AHT include Hold 
time & wrap time? Can you 
please share the Avg Talk 
Time, Avg Hold Time and Avg 
Wrap time of the calls? 

All SLA parameters not mentioned in 
RFP will be mutually decided after 
analyzing the initial call for first weeks. 

26 "Operational" clause point xii. 
Service level minimum 95% 

The Service level of 95% is to 
be achieved in how much 
time in secs? Or what is the 
threshold for SL in Secs? 
(e.g., 95% in 30 Secs, 45 
Secs, 60 Secs etc?) 

All SLA parameters not mentioned in 
RFP will be mutually decided after 
analyzing the initial call for first weeks. 

27 "Operational" clause - It seems 
like there are various LOBs like 
Voice Inbound, Voice Outbound, 
Email, Chat  

For 10 agents’ requirements 
only, what will be the break-
up of agents for each of these 
4 Lobs? Please share. 

It is expected all personnel onboarded 
on the process should have the 
capability to handle all mentioned type 
of LOBs 

28 Clause 5.2.3 Team Structure and 
Resource Count Project Lead: 1 
(Non-Billable) 

Is the Project lead required on 
Dedicated basis?  

Yes 
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29 5.2.2 Management and Reporting 
Team * The team should also 
support NSWS Team of Invest 
India in delivering quick 
turnaround and bespoke research 
requested by various ministries of 
the Government of India/key 
investors. 

Is this an extra Line of 
business (LOB) besides 
Inbound, Outbound, Email 
and Chat? If yes, please 
share how many agents will 
be required for such kind of 
research works as these are 
time-consuming.  
Also, are such kind of 
research and non-end 
customer engagement work 
(like Backoffice work, 
research etc) Billable to Invest 
India?  

All SLA parameters not mentioned in 
RFP will be mutually decided after 
analyzing the initial call for first weeks. 

30 5.2 Scope of Work and 
Deliverables, Systems: -. CTI 
Should be able to integrate with 
call center solution. 
It may be interfaced with the Core 
system of NSWS so send/receive 
data which needs to 
be populated (as in when 
developed). Invest India will give 
read access rights to bidders 
for its system.  

Please share NSWS Core 
system details like make, 
version, h/w, s/w, application 
and where all integration will 
be required?  
 
Also share full scope for the 
proposed integration in 
details. 
 
  

API for MS Dynamics 365 APIs will be 
provided for data exchange. 

31 5.2 Scope of Work and 
Deliverables, Systems: CRM 

CRM will be provided by 
Invest India or by Agency? 
What is the scope and specs 
required from the CRM? Pls 
share full details. 

Invest India, MS Dynamics 365. 

32 5.2 Scope of Work and 
Deliverables, Systems: Toll Free 
line, SMS server, PRI 
connections, Network 
Connectivity (MPLS), Internet 
connections  

Will supplier bill Invest India 
separately for these 
requirements on actuals or all 
IT and Connectivity 
requirements costs to be 
baked into Per Seat Cost? 
 
Also all usage expenses 
(lease line, data consumption 
etc) should be pass through 
costs billed at actuals. Please 
confirm.  

IT and Connectivity requirements costs 
to be booked into Per Seat Cost. 

33 The bidder should have a 
minimum turnover of Rs.50 crores 
per annum in two of last three 
financial years (CA Audited 
certificate and income tax returns 
for last 3 financial years). 

Radical Minds has below turn 
over in last three year. Please 
confirm if we will be eligible 
for the bidding. 
• FY2020-21 - 40cr+  
• FY2019-20 - 60cr 
• FY2018-18 - 42.40cr.  

Please refer to the corrigendum on 
www.investindia.gov.in  

34 The bidder must have 
successfully completed at least 2 
projects of similar nature** in last 
3 years with at least 1 project 
having a minimum order value of 
INR 50 lakh each. (Copy of work 
order, Contract for each of the 
mentioned assignments 
required). State/Central Single 

Radical minds has done the 
worked with private sector for 
BFSI and the project value 
was 50 lakhs+ but not with 
state /central government and 
if we talk about government 
sector so we are working with 
DDA and Balmer Lawrie 
which are the government 

Please refer to the prequalification 
criteria of the RFP. 

http://www.investindia.gov.in/
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Window systems, Tax helplines, 
BFSI, Techno-Regulatory, 
Application Processing etc. 

clients, and the order value is 
again 50 lakhs+. Please 
confirm if we will be eligible.  

 


